VILLAGE OF RED HOOK
ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS MEETING
October 24, 2019
7:00 PM


Present:   Chairman George Beekman, Member Erik Cuthell, Member Maarten Reilingh and 
                 Member William Noonan

Absent:     Member Caroline Rider




Chairman George Beekman opened the October 24, 2019 meeting of the ZBA at 7:00pm.

Chairman George Beekman made a motion to accept and approve the minutes of the 
Zoning Board of Appeals meeting dated September 26, 2019.  Motion seconded by Member Cuthell.  All in favor.


#1.  Dan Wheeler                                        24 Prince Street                         Area Variance
       Tax Parcel ID# 6272-10-342714                                      Public Hearing Continuation

Present from prior Public Hearing: Nick Sperry of 28 Prince Street

Chair Beekman advised that applicants Dan and Lorraine Wheeler submitted a letter vis email to Secretary Hart dated October 23, 2019 requesting that their application be tabled to the November, 2019 ZBA Meeting pending receipt of requested survey.  Chair Beekman read the email into record (copy on file in Building Department).

Mr. Sperry of 28 Prince Street, Red Hook, was present and advised that he will be out of Town 
in November and stated this was the 3rd meeting he has attended and asked that the meeting be pushed to December because he feels since he is the one being impacted by this application.  Chair Beekman said this Board knows his position.  Mr. Sperry asked if there is a recording of the meeting.  Secretary Hart said yes.  Mr. Sperry said he won’t be back until second week in December.  Secretary Hart said she will reach out to Mr. Sperry about meeting date. Chair Beekman said they will reach out to the applicants and advise.  Mr. Sperry said that this Board should take into consideration that if the Board makes a decision and he is not present that decision is made without his input which could potentially change that decision.  
Chair Beekman said this is not predicated on one individual. Mr. Sperry said if there is a decision he could go to an Article 78 Proceeding which is an expense for the Village. Mr. Sperry said he would very much like to be present and cannot cancel his prior plans so would 
appreciate the Board pushing the date off.

Chair Beekman read into record that this application and public hearing will be tabled to the November ZBA meeting date (which date will be worked out due to the Thanksgiving holiday) and all parties and Board Members will be advised of date once agreed upon.



                                                                                                                Page 2
                                                                                                               10-24-2019 ZBA Mtg.


#2.  Red Hook VFW Post                     30 Elizabeth Street            Interpretation Continuation 
       Tax Parcel ID# 6272-10-446619                                      

No persons present. 

Chair Beekman advised Board Members present that the letter requested by the Board at the September 26, 2019 ZBA meeting was received by the VFW which included all the conditions that the Board required in order to operate 3 portable golf simulators.   

Letter from VFW Post 7765 dated October 18, 2019 was read into record (copy of letter on file with the Building Department). 

All Board members reviewed the letter and all were satisfied with content of letter.


#3.  Kenneth Poliziani                              7 Phillips Street                         Area Variance
       Tax Parcel ID# 6272-06-283764                                      

Applicant, Kenneth Poliziani present

Chair Beekman advised this application was a 2nd meeting and public hearing and the applicant is seeking relief from Village Zoning Section 200-9-D-(5) for a front yard setback to allow for the construction of a deck to be attached to the house. Chair Beekman advised in this instance the deck will not extend beyond the house.

Chair Beekman read the definition of an area variance.

Applicant submitted to the Board a copy of the requested measurements in writing as requested by the Board at the September 26, 2019 ZBA meeting.  Chair Beekman asked applicant if measurements provided were with or without steps.  Applicant advised they were 24 from the deck to the street and 22 to include steps, which is 8 foot. Chair Beekman said ok and that 22 is what they are asking for.  Applicant said yes.  Neighbors were present, but not to speak at public hearing, but asked if the deck would be on Phillips Street side or Prince Street side.  Chair Beekman said fronts on Phillips, but goes towards the backyard.  

Chair Beekman read Short Form SEQR.  Chair Beekman advised that based on the information and analysis completed in SEQR review, and any supporting documentation, that the proposed action will not result in any significant adverse environmental impact. 

Chair Beekman made a motion to declare a negative declaration.  Motion seconded by Member Noonan.  All in favor. 







                                                                                                                      Page 3
                                                                                                                     10/24/2019 ZBA MTG.


Chair Beekman opened the Public Hearing at 7:15pm.  No persons present. Secretary Hart advised that no responses were received that mailing were sent certified mail and return receipts on file.  Member Cuthell closed the public hearing at 7:19pm.

Chair Beekman read the definition of an area variance from the NYS Guide to Planning and Zoning Section 7-712-b-3-(a).

Chair Beekman read the Area Variance Test Sheet (Report from the Zoning Board of Appeals) (copy on file in the Building Department).

#1. Undesirable Change in the Neighborhood Character:  No
#2. Alternative Cure Sought: No
#3. Substantiality: No
#4. Adverse Effect or Impact: No
#5. Not Self-Created: Yes; but applicant kept to a minimum

Conditions:  To be built to plan submitted by the Applicant.

Chair Beekman made a motion to approve the area variance for property located at 7 Phillips Street listed under Tax Parcel ID#6272-06-283764.  The variance is granted from 
Chapter 200-9-D-(5) of the Code of the Village of Red Hook which requires a front yard setback of 30 feet.  The Variance of 8 feet brings the setback to 22 feet from the step in order to construct a deck off the side of the house which will not extend from the structure that faces the road; and must be built to plan submitted by the applicant. Motion seconded by Member Cuthell.  All in favor. 


#4.  Steven Appenzeller & Beth Goldberg        19 Linden Avenue                    Area Variance
       Tax Parcel ID# 6272-06-384861                                      

Applicants, Steven Appenzeller and Beth Goldberg present

Chair Beekman advised this application was a 2nd meeting and public hearing and applicants are seeking a variance relief from Village Zoning Section 200-8-D-(7) for a side yard setback of 15 foot.  Applicant is seeking a 3 foot variance going from 15 feet to 12 foot in order to enlarge the existing two car garage.

Member Cuthell confirmed with Secretary Hart that mailings were sent certified mail and return receipts on file. 

Chair Beekman read the definition of an area variance.

Applicant also confirmed mailings were sent.  Secretary Hart advised no responses were received.



                                                                                                                    Page 4
                                                                                                                    10/24/2019 ZBA MTG.


Chair Beekman read Short Form SEQR.  Chair Beekman advised that based on the information and analysis completed in SEQR review, and any supporting documentation, that the proposed action will not result in any significant adverse environmental impact. 

Chair Beekman made a motion to declare a negative declaration.  Motion seconded by Member Cuthell.  All in favor. 

Chair Beekman opened the public hearing at 7:35pm. No person present.  No comments.

Chair Beekman made a motion to close the public hearing at 7:39pm.  Motion seconded by Member Noonan.  All in favor.

Chair Beekman read the Area Variance Test Sheet (Report from the Zoning Board of Appeals) (copy on file in the Building Department).

#1. Undesirable Change in the Neighborhood Character:  No
#2. Alternative Cure Sought: No
#3. Substantiality: No
#4. Adverse Effect or Impact: No
#5. Not Self-Created: Yes; but applicant kept to a minimum

Conditions:  To be built to plan submitted by the Applicants.

Chair Beekman made a motion to approve the area variance for property located at 19 Linden Avenue listed under Tax Parcel ID#6272-06-384861.  The variance is granted from 
Chapter 200-8-D-(7) of the Code of the Village of Red Hook which requires a side yard setback of 15 feet.  The Variance of 3 feet brings the setback to 12 feet in order to allow enlargement of an existing two car garage attached to the house in order to accommodate a functional 2-car garage and must be built to plan submitted by the applicant. Motion seconded by Member Cuthell.  All in favor. 

November meeting dates were discussed.  Secretary Hart said she wanted to discuss with Village Attorney.  Member Cuthell said he would like all parties present.  Chair Beekman said next meeting should be in November.  Member Cuthell said next meeting date would fall on Thanksgiving, so Board discussed meeting date of November 21st.   Secretary Hart advised if any change, she will advise Members and applicants of new date.

Chair Beekman made a motion to close the October 24, 2019 meeting of the ZBA at 7:55pm.  Motion seconded by Member Cuthell.  All in favor.


Submitted by,
[bookmark: _GoBack]/S/
Lara Hart, ZBA Secretary


